The Bright Star Of
Centrel Texas

OCTOBER 27, 2020
5:00 P.M.

CITY COUNCIL

MEETING AGENDA

¥




THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS

Harl(e NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF

The Bright Star Of
Central Texas

The City of Harker Heights
305 Miller’s Crossing

Harker Heights, Texas 76548
Phone 254/953-5600

Fax 254/953-5014

Mayor
Spencer H. Smith

Mayor Protem
Michael Blomquist

City Council

Jennifer McCann

Jackeline Soriano Fountain
John Reider

Jody Nicholas

VL

VIA TELECONFERENCE

Notice is hereby given that, beginning at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 27, 2020, and
continuing from day to day thereafter if necessary the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, will conduct a telephonic meeting to contain the spread of COVID-19 in
accordance with Governor Abbott’s declaration of the COVID-19 public health threat
and action to temporarily suspend certain provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act
issued on March 16, 2020. The subjects to be discussed are listed in the following
agenda:

I. Invocation:
IL. Pledge of Allegiance:

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America and to the Republic for
which it stands, one nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.

Honor the Texas Flag. I pledge allegiance to thee Texas; one state under God, one and
indivisible.
III.  Roll Call:

IV, Mayoral Proclamations and Presentations:

Proclamation declaring November 2" through November 6™, 2020, as “Municipal Court
Week™.

Proclamation declaring November 6, 2020, as “Texas Arbor Day”.
Consent Items:

Discuss and consider approving the minutes of the meeting held on October 13, 2020,
and take the appropriate action.

Discuss and consider approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker Heights, Texas,
amending Ordinance 2020-06 of the Harker Heights Code to extend the Public Health
Emergency Declaration through January 31, 2021, and take the appropriate action.

Discuss and consider a Resolution of the City Council of The City of Harker Heights,
Texas, establishing its Policy and Procedures for Public Comments, Rules of Decorum,
and Presentations at Open Meetings of the City Council, and take the appropriate action.

Presentations by Citizens:

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may do so during this item.
Please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your comments, State law
(Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) engaging in discussion other than
providing a statement of specific factual information or reciting existing City policy, and
(2) taking action other than directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. Please
state your name and address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes.



VIL

VIIIL.

Public Hearings:
Old Business:

Discuss and consider approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, authorizing a change in the Plate Vest Level listed in the City’s previous
Application for a Grant in the amount of $86,130.44 through the Criminal Justice
Division Grant Program; for the purchase of 38 Pro Tech DT 206¢ Level III Plate Vests
with accessories; and 4 RAM1 Swat Heavy Vest; authorizing the City Manager to sign
on behalf of the City, and take the appropriate action. (Police Chief)

New Business:

Discuss and consider approving the City of Harker Heights Coronavirus Relief Fund
(CRF) Small Business Grant Awards for Phase 1 in the amount of $89,468.50 and take
the appropriate action. (Assistant City Manager)

Discuss and consider approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, awarding a Contract for the Lynn Drive Demolition Project in the
amount of $65,250 to Sierra Contracting Corporation (DBA Sierra Demolition);
authorizing the City Manager to sign on behalf of the City, and take the appropriate
action. (Planning and Development Director)

Discuss and consider approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker Heights, Texas,
adopting and extending its Water Conservation Plan, as revised, and Drought
Contingency Plan for a period of five (5) years; providing for review for the purpose of
re-adoption in five (5) years; and providing that such plans shall continue in full force
and effect until readoption, and take the appropriate action. (Public Works Director)

Discuss and consider approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Contract with Santex Truck
Centers Ltd. (DBA Kyrish Government Group/Kyrish Truck Center) for the
refurbishment of the Harker Heights Fire Department 1996 E-One/Freightliner Pumper
in the amount of $227,132 and take the appropriate action. (Fire Chief)

Closed Meeting
Announce a closed meeting for the following purposes:

A) Pursuant to §551.074 of the Texas Government Code to deliberate the
appointment of public officers to the Planning and Zoning Commission and
Building Standards Commission.

B) Pursuant to §551.074 of the Texas Government Code to deliberate the
appointment of public officers to the Board of Adjustment.

Reconvene open meeting to take action as appropriate on matters discussed in the closed
meeting.



XI. New Business Continued:

8. Discuss and consider appointments to the following Boards/Commissions/Committees,
and take the appropriate action:

A) Parks and Recreation/Tree Advisory Boards

B) Library Board

C) Public Safety Commission

D) Animal Advisory Committee

E) Harker Heights Economic Development Corporation

6. Discuss and consider approving a request from James Butler for a Special Events Permit
for an event at 110 E. Beeline Ln. that will host in excess of ten (10) people on
Wednesday, October 28" and Saturday, October 31, 2020, and take the appropriate
action. (Parks and Recreation Director)

7. Discuss and consider approving a request from Urzah Hunter for a Facility Rental at the
Carl Levin Park Pavilion for an event in excess of ten (10) people on Friday, October 30,
2020, and take the appropriate action. (Parks and Recreation Director)

8. Discuss and consider approving a request from Taija Montgomery for a Facility Rental
at the Community Park Pavilion for an event in excess of ten (10) people on Sunday,
January 17, 2021, and take the appropriate action. (Parks and Recreation Director)

9. Discuss and consider approving a request from Kaitlin Nix for a Facility Rental at the
Purser Family Park Pavilion for an event in excess of ten (10) people on Saturday,
October 31, 2020, and take the appropriate action. (Parks and Recreation Director)

10. Discuss and consider approving a request from Rachel Smith for a Facility Rental at the
Carl Levin Park Pavilion for an event in excess of ten (10) people on Sunday, November
1, 2020, and take the appropriate action. (Parks and Recreation Director)

XIL Reports of Advisory Boards & Commissions:
XIIIL Items from Council:
XIv. Staff Reports:

1 Receive and discuss the City Manager’s Report. (City Manager)
XV. Announcements:

XVIL Adjournment:

I hereby certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board of City Hall, City of
Harker Heights, Texas, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 23rd day of
October 2020, by 4:00 p.m., and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the
scheduled time of said meeting.

Gullellolan
Juliette Helsham
City Secretary



The public may participate remotely in this meeting by dialing-in using the toll-free number:
(866) 899-4679 and use Access Code: Access Code: 704-688-405.

To join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone, use the following meeting link:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/704688405

The public will be permitted to offer public comments telephonically as provided by the agenda.
Written questions or comments may be submitted two hours before the meeting to the City
Secretary’s Office. When submitting your written questions or comments, you must include
your Name and Address. This agenda is also available on the City of Harker Heights website at
www.ci.harker-heights.tx.us,

“This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for
accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact
the City Secretary’s office at 254-953-5600, or FAX 254-953-5614, or email
jhelsham@harkerheights.gov for further information.”

“Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Government Code the City Council reserves the right to go into
Closed Meeting on any item listed above if deemed necessary.”



Proclamation
Municipal (;omt Week

o

Whereas, the Municipal Court of Harker Heights, a time honored and vital part of
the City of Harker Heights, has existed since 1960; and

‘Whereas more people, citizens and non-citizens alike, come in personal contact with
municipal courts than all other Texas courts combined, and public impression of the
entire Texas judicial system is largely dependent upon the public’s experience in
municipal court; and

Whereas, Municipal Judges and Court personnel continually strive to improve the
administration of justice and have pledged to be ever mindful of their neutrality and
impartiality, rendering equal service to all, and conform to the standards set by the
Canons of Judicial Conduct; and

Whereas, it is most appropriate that we recognize the accomplishments of the 923
Texas Municipal Courts, and salute their critical role in preserving public safety,
protecting the quality of life in Texas communities, and deterring future criminal
behavior.

Now therefore, I, Spencer H. Smith, Mayor of the City of Harker Heights, do hereby
proclaim the week of November 2 through November 6*, 2020, as Municipal Court
Week, and further extend appreciation to all Harker Heights Municipal Court
personnel for the vital services they perform and their exemplary dedication to our
community.

In Witness Whereof, I have signed this proclamation and have affixed the Seal of the
City of Harker Heights, Texas, this 27" day of October, 2020.

Spencer H. Smith
Mayor



Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

Whereas,

L GROWING
B TEXAS

TEXAS ARBOR DAY EOEQ

PROCLAMATION

in 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed a tree planting holiday to be called
“Arbor Day” to the Nebraska State Board of Agriculture which is now
observed throughout the nation and world; and

in 1889, the citizens of Temple, Texas, authored an Arbor Day Resolution,
which the Texas Legislature passed into law to encourage the planting of trees
in the State; and

trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, cut
heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce
life-giving oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife; and

trees are not only a renewable resource, but also beautify our
community, increase property values, and are a source of joy and spiritual
renewal; and

the City of Harker Heights has been a Tree City USA member since 2011
and earlier this year received our nine years accreditation as such; and

the City of Harker Heights hosts the official Texas Arbor Day 2020, and
proudly leads the State in Growing Texas Traditions;

Now Therefore, I, Spencer H. Smith, Mayor of the City of Harker Heights do hereby
proclaim, November 6, 2020, to be

‘Toxas Hrbor ﬂqy 8

in the City of Harker Heights and urge all citizens celebrate Texas Arbor Day by planting
a tree to promote the well-being of this and future generations.

In Witness Whereof, | have set my hand and affixed the Seal of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, this 27" day of October 2020.

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor
City of Harker Heights



Minutes of the of the City Council meeting held at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 13, 2020, by a
telephonic meeting to contain the spread of COVID-19 in accordance with Governor Abbott’s
declaration of the COVID-19 public health threat and action to temporarily suspend certain provisions
of the Texas Open Meetings Act issued on March 16, 2020:

Roll Call: Spencer H. Smith Mayor
Michael Blomquist Mayor Pro-tem
Jennifer McCann Councilmember Place 1
Jackeline Soriano Fountain Councilmember Place 3
Jody Nicholas Councilmember Place 5
David Mitchell City Manager
Juliette Helsham City Secretary

Absent: John Reider Councilmember Place 4

Mayoral Proclamations and Presentations:

1. The Mayor presented a proclamation declaring October 19 - 23, 2020, as “Chamber of Commerce
Week”.

Consent Items:

1. Council discussed and considered approving the minutes of the meeting held on September 22, 2020.

Blomquist made the motion to approve as written. Seconded by Nicholas. All in favor. Motion
approved 4-0.

Presentations by Citizens:

Lynda Nash, 3006 Sun Dance Drive, Harker Heights, Texas 76548, informed the Council and citizens that on
Saturday, October 10" at 9:00 a.m. at the E-Center they will be giving out over 1,200 boxes of food and 1,200
gallons of milk. This food drive is not based on income and is open to all citizens in need. Volunteers are
needed and are encouraged to attend.

Public Hearings:

1. Council conducted a Public Hearing to discuss and consider approving an Ordinance of the City of
Harker Heights, Texas, to change the zoning designation from R-1 (One Family Dwelling District) To
B-3 (Local Business District), on property described as Fawn Valley Block Six (6), Lot One (1),
generally located at 1702 E. Knights Way (E. FM 2410), Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. Joseph
Molis, Planning and Development Director made the presentation. Raymond Hamden was present to
represent the request. Blomquist made the motion to disapprove/deny the request. Seconded by
Nicholas. Blomquist, McCann and Nicholas in favor. Fountain against. Motion to deny passed 3-1.

At 7:24 p.m. Mayor Smith called for a fifteen (15) minute break.

Mayor Smith reconvened the meeting at 7:45 p.m.

New Business:

1. Council discussed and considered approving a request for Preliminary Plat approval for Sapiah Plains
Phase Three on property described as approximately 1.376 acres of land, being part of H.B. Littlefield

Survey, Abstract No. 55, more or less, described in a Record Document Number 2019-58768 in the
real property records of Bell County, Texas, generally located at 1808 Ponca Trace, Harker Heights,



Bell County, Texas. Joseph Molis, Planning and Development Director, made the presentation.
Nicholas made the motion to approve. Seconded by McCann. All in favor. Motion approved 4-0.

Council discussed and considered approving a request by Remco Properties, LLC on a Concept Plan
for a Duplex Development on property described as 6.917 acres of land, more or less, part of the
Cullendar Keele Survey, Abstract No. 991, and the J. Thomlinson Survey, Abstract No. 813, generally
located within the 700 Block of South Amy Lane, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. Joseph Molis,
Planning and Development Director, made the presentation. McCann made the motion to approve with
Condition 1: A waiver is granted to allow a single access and secondary emergency as depicted in
Concept Plan. Seconded by Blomquist. All in favor. Motion approved 4-0.

Council discussed and considered approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, awarding a contract for the Lynn Drive Asbestos Abatement Project in the amount of
$34,950 to Division 7 Waterproofing, LLC. Joseph Molis, Planning and Development Director, made
the presentation. Nicholas made the motion to approve. Seconded by McCann. All in favor. Motion
approved 4-0.

Council discussed and considered approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, approving a negotiated settlement between the Atmos Cities Steering Committee
(“ACSC”) and Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division regarding the Company’s 2020 Rate Review
Mechanism Filing; declaring existing rates to be unreasonable; adopting tariffs that reflect rate
adjustments consistent with the negotiated settlement; finding the rates to be set by the attached
settlement tariffs to be just and reasonable and in the public interest; approving an attached exhibit
establishing a benchmark for Pensions and Retiree Medical Benefits; approving an attached exhibit
regarding Amortization of Regulatory Liability; requiring the Company to reimburse ACSC’s
Reasonable Ratemaking Expenses; Determining that this Resolution was passed in accordance with
the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act; Adopting a savings clause; Declaring an effective
date; And requiring delivery of this Resolution to the Company and the ACSC’s Legal Counsel.
Ayesha Lealiiee, Finance Director made the presentation. Fountain made the motion to approve.
Seconded by Nicholas. All in favor. Motion approved 4-0.

Council discussed and considered approving the authorization of the City of Harker Heights
Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) Water Payment Assistance Grant Program. Ayesha Lealiiee, Finance
Director, made the presentation. Blomquist made the motion to approve. Seconded by McCann. All in
favor. Motion approved 4-0.

Council discussed and considered approving a request from Jesusa Villafuente for a Facility Rental at
the Purser Family Park Pavilion for an event in excess of ten (10) people on Sunday, October 25,
2020. Jeff Achee, Parks and Recreation Director made the presentation. McCann made the motion to
approve. Seconded by Fountain. All in favor. Motion approved 4-0.

Council discussed and considered approving a request from Shynyece Smith for a Facility Rental at
the Carl Levin Park Pavilion and Amphitheater for an event in excess of ten (10) people on Saturday,
October 31, 2020. Jeff Achee, Parks and Recreation Director, made the presentation. McCann made
the motion to approve. Seconded by Blomquist. All in favor. Motion approved 4-0.

Council discussed and considered approving a request from Milika Pahula for a Facility Rental at the
Harker Heights Community Park Pavilion for an event in excess of ten (10) people on Saturday,
October 31, 2020. Requestor withdrew the request. No action taken.

Council discussed and considered approving a request from the City of Harker Heights Activities
Center to host an Outdoor Movie Night at the Harker Heights Community Park Softball Complex, an
event in excess of ten (10) people on Friday, October 23, 2020. Jeff Achee, Parks and Recreation
Director, made the presentation. McCann made the motion to approve. Seconded by Fountain. All in
favor. Motion approved 4-0.



10. Council discussed and considered approving a request from the City of Harker Heights Activities
Center to host an Outdoor Ceremony Celebrating Texas Arbor Day at the Carl Levin Park
Amphitheater, an event in excess of ten (10) people on Friday, November 6, 2020. Jeff Achee, Parks
and Recreation Director, made the presentation. McCann made the motion to approve. Seconded by
Nicholas. All in favor. Motion approved 4-0.

Items from Council:

Mayor Pro-tem Blomquist reminded everyone that there are only three (3) more Saturdays for the Farmer’s
Market culminating on Halloween, and encourages everyone to get out and enjoy the local vendors.

Staff Reports:

1. Council received and discussed the City Manager’s Report. David Mitchell, City Manager made the
presentation. No action taken.

Announcements:

Mayor Smith stated that he attended the following events:

September 25% — Harker Heights Disabled American Veterans 29 Centennial Proclamation.
September 25" — Harker Heights Police Department Swearing-in Ceremony.

October 3™ — Harker Heights Farmer’s Market at Seton Hospital.

October 6" — Harker Heights City Council Workshop.

October 9" — Meeting with the members of Girl Scout Troop 6119 at City Hall.

October 10% — Harker Heights Chamber Mug Run at Stonetree Golf Club.

October 10" — Harker Heights Farmer’s Market at Seton Hospital.

Mayor Pro-tem Blomquist reminded everyone that Early Voting started today and encouraged everyone to get
out and vote.

Adjournment:

There being no further business the City of Harker Heights City Council Meeting was adjourned at 8:44 p.m.

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor
ATTEST:

Juliette Helsham, City Secretary



N Hei R COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
U AGENDA ITEM # V-2

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: OCTOBER 27, 2020

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER
HEIGHTS, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE 2020-06 OF THE HARKER HEIGHTS CODE TO
EXTEND THE PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY DECLARATION THROUGH JANUARY 31
2021, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.

EXPLANATION:

The State of Texas and Bell County both have issued disaster declarations that cover Harker Heights in
relation to the COVID-19 pandemic. According to the Texas Municipal League (TML) guidance on
receiving reimbursements in relation to COVID-19 expenditures, Mayor Smith issued a disaster declaration
for the City of Harker Heights on March 20, 2020.

The City Council approved an Ordinance during a special called meeting on April 7, 2020, to extend the
Public Health Emergency Declaration to April 30, 2020.

On April 28, 2020, the Council approved an extension to the Public Health Emergency Declaration until
May 31, 2020.

On May 26, 2020, the Council approved an extension to the Public Health Emergency Declaration until
June 30, 2020.

On June 23, 2020, the Council approved an extension to the Public Health Emergency Declaration until
July 31¢, 2020.

On July 28, 2020, the Council approved an extension to the Public Health Emergency Declaration until
August 31, 2020.

On August 25, 2020, the Council approved an extension to the Public Health Emergency Declaration until
September 30, 2020.

On September 22, 2020, the Council met again and approved another extension to the Public Health
Emergency Declaration until October 31, 2020.

Action is now needed again by the Council to consider extending this declaration to match recent directives
from the State and Bell County out to January 31, 2021.

This declaration continues to align with the City’s COVID-19 response measures to those issued by Bell
County and the State. If Bell County or the State modify their orders, then the City’s requirements would

automatically reflect these modifications, to include the Governor’s staged initiatives of “Reopening
Texas”. ’

The Council may at any time choose to end, modify, and/or extend the declaration.

Page 1 of 2



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the extension.

ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL:
1. Motion to Approve/Disapprove an Ordinance amending Ordinance 2020-06 of the Harker Heights
Code to extend the Public Health Emergency Declaration through January 31, 2021.

2. Any other action desired.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance

Page 2 of 2



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, AMENDING
ORDINANCE 2020-06 OF THE HARKER HEIGHTS CODE TO EXTEND THE PUBLIC
HEALTH EMERGENCY DECLARATION THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2021.

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds that it is
necessary and desirable to amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided in
order to extend the Public Health Emergency Declaration; and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and notice of
the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in strict accordance
with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: The City Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set forth
in the preamble to this ordinance are true and correct.

SECTION 2: Ordinance 2020-06, 2, of the Code of Harker Heights is hereby appended with the
following:

2. This declaration ratifies the disaster declaration issued by Harker Heights
Mayor Spencer H. Smith on March 20, 2020, and this declaration shall run until
January 31, 2021.

SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance
are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City Secretary
shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on October 27,
2020.

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor
ATTEST:

Juliette Helsham, City Secretary



Har k CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

Hel ts AGENDA ITEM # V-3

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: OCTOBER 27, 2020

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS., ESTABLISHING ITS POLICY AND
PROCEDURES FOR PUBLIC COMMENTS, RULES OF DECORUM, AND PRESENTATIONS
AT OPEN MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.

EXPLANATION:
As discussed during the City Council Workshop on October 20, 2020, the primary purpose of Harker Heights City
Council meetings is to afford elected officials the opportunity to conduct Harker Heights business.

Local governments are ultimately responsible to the people in the communities they govern. Therefore, it is
essential for governments to have accountability measures in place. Policy and procedures set up internal
accountability structures for employees and citizens. Sound policies help local governments function efficiently
and maintain trust with both employees and community members

The Texas Open Meetings Act, Section 551.007, allows members of the public who desire to address the City
Council regarding meeting agenda items to do so. It also allows the City Council to adopt reasonable rules
regarding the public’s right to address the body.

It is staff’s intent at future meetings to bring forth to the City Council additional policies that will incorporate
governing standards and expectations of City staff and Members of the Council.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approving a resolution establishing the City Council’s policy and procedures for public
comment, rules of decorum, and presentations at open meeting of the City Council.

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL:

1. Motion to Approve/Disapprove a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker Heights, Texas,
establishing its policy and procedures for public comments, rules of decorum, and presentations at open
meetings of the City Council.

2. Any other action desired.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Exhibit A — City of Harker Heights, Texas, Policy and Procedure on Public Comments and Rules of Decorum
at City Council Meetings.

2. Resolution




EXHIBIT A
CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, POLICY AND PROCEDURE ON PUBLIC COMMENTS
AND RULES OF DECORUM AT CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS
I. Overview
The City Council of Harker Heights, Texas, encourages public participation in open meetings. Members
of the public who desire to address the City Council may speak on issues regarding meeting agenda items
and issues not on the meeting agenda, including the use of presentations.

This policy provides guidelines for:

a. Fair and consistent application of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, (Texas Open
Meetings Act), regarding Public Comments; and

b. Conducting public meetings in an efficient and orderly manner.
IL. Procedures for Speaking to the City Council
a. The City shall provide a Public Comment Form. Public Comment Forms shall include the
speaker’s contact information and provide space for the speaker’s comments. Public Comment
Forms shall be made available online at www.harkerheights.gov and prior to all City Council

meetings.

b. Individuals in attendance at the meeting who wish to speak shall:

1. Complete a Public Comment Form to include the speaker’s contact information and the posted
agenda item or number or the non-agenda topic of discussion; and

2. Deliver it to the City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting or immediately prior to
addressing the council on an item or via email prior to the meeting to City Secretary
admin@harkerheights.gov and

3. Wait to be called to speak by the Chair.

4. Speakers shall address the Mayor and City Council.

c. Individuals in attendance at the meeting who do not wish to speak but want their comments to be
entered into the meeting record shall:

1. Complete a Public Comment Form to include the speaker’s contact information and the
speaker’s comment they wish documented in the meeting record or provide a pre-written
document for the record; and

2. Deliver it to the City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.

d. Public Comment Forms received after the start of a Council meeting will be delivered to the City
Council in the normal course of business.




c.

f.

Individuals who wish to submit comments digitally shall:

1. Complete the Public Comment Form available at www.harkerheights.gov; and

2. Submit the Public Comment Form with all information required, after the posting of the
meeting agenda for which the comment is being submitted, but before the posted start time
of the meeting for which the comment is being submitted.

At every Council meeting, a ‘Presentations by Citizens’ segment will be held, prior to the City
Council’s consideration of the Agenda Items, for those Speakers who wish to address the City
Council on any item, too include listed agenda items Statutory, public hearings will allow for
speakers to be heard on the subject matter of the public hearing at the time the public hearing is
held separate from the ‘Presentation by Citizens’. Digitally submitted comments and written
comments submitted in person will be made available to the City Council and will be enrolled into
the public record of the meeting.

II1. Procedure for Using Presentations/Materials/Handouts

d.

Individuals desiring to use Presentations/Materials/Handouts (collectively referred to as a
“Presentation”) of any kind shall satisty the following:
1. Prior to the Meeting
a. Deliver the Presentation to the Office of the City Secretary no later than noon of the day
before the meeting.
b. Deliver the Presentation via email to admin@harkerheights.gov or in person at Harker
Heights City Hall, 305 Miller’s Crossing, Harker Heights, Texas, 76548.
2. At the Meeting
a. Be prepared and able to setup and deliver the Presentation within the allotted speaking
time.
b. Be prepared and able to setup and deliver the Presentation without the use of City resources.

For presentations delivered in person, a minimum of ten (10) copies shall be given to the City
Secretary.

For presentations delivered via email, the City Secretary staff will issue a confirmation email. The
City Secretary will distribute an appropriate number of copies of the presentation to the City
Council, and City Staff. The City Secretary may utilize electronic means to distribute the
presentation.

The City reserves the right to deny the use of any presentation. Failure to follow the procedures
for presentation will result in denial of the use of the presentation.

Approved presentations will be documented in the meeting minutes for public record.



IV. Order of Speakers and Time Allotted to Speak:

a.

c.

Order of Speakers

1. Agenda Items (Non-Public Hearing): Individuals wishing to speak regarding meeting agenda
items that are not Public Hearings will be called to speak at the beginning of the meeting during
Presentations by Citizens in the order in which the City Secretary received the Public Comment
Forms.

2. Public Hearing Items: Individuals wishing to speak regarding Public Hearing items on the
meeting agenda will be called to speak during the discussion of the related Public Hearing.

3. Non-Agenda Items: Individuals wishing to speak on issues not listed on the agenda will be
called to speak at the beginning of the meeting during Presentations by Citizens in the order in
which the City Secretary received the Public Comment Forms.

Time Allotted to Speak

1. Agenda Items (Non-Public Hearing): Speakers wishing to address the City Council regarding
any non-public hearing agenda item(s) shall have a time limit of three (3) minutes per speaker,
per agenda item.

2. Public Hearing Items: Speakers wishing to address the City Council regarding any public
hearing agenda item shall have a time limit of three (3) minutes per speaker, per agenda item.

3. Non-Agenda Items: Speakers wishing to address the City Council regarding any non-agenda
item shall have a time limit of three (3) minutes per speaker.

Time Allotted to Speak (with Translator): Non-English Speakers requiring a translator to address
the City Council shall be allowed twice the allotted amount of time as English speakers.

Modification of Speaking Time: The Mayor may reduce the speaker time limit uniformly for all
speakers to accommodate the number of speakers or improve meeting efficiency. At the discretion
of City Council, the speaker may be requested to stand for further discussion of an item if the
agenda so allows.

A speaker will not be allowed to yield their three (3) minutes to another speaker.

V. City Council Meeting Rules of Decorum

a.

b.

Speakers have the right to criticize policies, procedures, programs, and services, but speakers must
stick to public comment policy time limits and stay on topic.

All individuals are expected to be respectful and courteous to Council, staff, other speakers, and
others in attendance at the meeting.

Behavior that fails to yield the floor when the speaker’s time is concluded,; is not relevant to the
agenda item or City business; repeatedly interrupts a Council member; disturbs the order of the
meeting; involves loud, threatening, hostile, abusive, vulgar or obscene language; and disrupts the
Council meeting is prohibited.

Any speaker or audience member that violates the Rules of Decorum or engages in disruptive
behavior may be subject to removal from the meeting.

3|Page



e. No outside placards, banners, signs, pennants, or flags will be permitted in the Council Chambers
or in any other room in which the City Council is meeting.

f.  Only City staff, consultants, or petitioners, with scheduled agenda items, can use visual aids during
their scheduled presentations, unless otherwise allowed in accordance with Section III. of this
policy.

8. The Mayor or Presiding Officer will enforce these rules, and a person’s failure or refusal to comply

with an explicit request or order of the Mayor or Presiding Officer may violate the Texas Penal
Code, Section 38.13.

Adopted 10/27/2020

4|Pagé



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS,
TEXAS, ESTABLISHING ITS POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR PUBLIC
COMMENTS, RULES OF DECORUM, AND PRESENTATIONS AT OPEN MEETINGS
OF THE CITY COUNCIL; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, conducts open meetings in
accordance with the Texas Government Code, Chapter 551 Open Meetings: and

WHEREAS, Section 551.007 of the Texas Open Meetings Act allows members of the public who
desire to address the City Council regarding meeting agenda items to do so, and it allows the City
Council to adopt reasonable rules regarding the public’s right to address the body; and

WHEREAS, Section 551.042 of the Texas Open Meetings Act provides for public comments and
allowable responses to inquiries about a subject not on the meeting agenda; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, desires to establish its policy
for public comments and presentations at open meetings of the City Council

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That the foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct legislative findings
of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, and are fully incorporated into the body of this resolution.

Section 2. That the City Council of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, does hereby state the City
of Harker Heights Policy and Procedure for Public Comments, Rules of Decorum and
Presentations at open meetings of the City Council, a copy of which is attached hereto as

Exhibit A.

Section 3. That this Resolution shall become effective from and after its passage.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the City Council of the City of Harker Heights,
Texas, that the City hereby passes this resolution establishing policy and procedures for public
comments, rules of decorum, and presentations at open meetings of the City Council within the
City limits of the City of Harker Heights.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 27th DAY OF OCTOBER 2020, AT WHICH MEETING
A QUORUM WAS PRESENT AND HELD IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH THE
PROVISIONS OF TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 557.

Spencer H. Smith
Mayor
ATTEST:

Juliette Helsham
City Secretary



Hark CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

Hel tS AGENDA ITEM # VIII-1

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: OCTOBER 27, 2020

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN AMENDED RESOLUTION OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS., TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A
CHANGE IN THE PLATE VEST LEVEL LISTED IN THE CITY’S PREVIOUS
APPLICATION FOR A GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $86.130.44 THROUGH THE
CRIMINAL JUSTICE DIVISION GRANT PROGRAM: FOR THE PURCHASE OF 38
PRO TECH DT 206C LEVEL IIT PLATE VESTS WITH ACCESSORIES; AND 4 RAMI1
SWAT HEAVY VEST; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN ON BEHALF
OF THE CITY, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.

EXPLANATION:

The Harker Heights Police Department has prepared an application for a Criminal Justice Division
Grant Program (“Grant”) # 3998601 to equip the Department Patrol Officers with enhanced
protection by purchasing thirty-eight (38) Pro Tech DT 206C Level I1I plate vest and accessories
which will give them more ballistic coverage over the vital organs than the rifle resistant body
armor we are currently using for patrol. The Department is also requesting four (4) Point Blank
RAMI swat heavy vest. The RAMI has BCIII Ballistics and one 10X 12 Level III hard plate will
be issued to the entry and inner perimeter teams.

The Grant would provide a total of $86,130.44, with no requirement for a cash or in-kind match.

On February 25, 2020, a Resolution was approved by the Council for the application of this grant
to purchase certain pieces of the rifle vest. The State rejected the application and requested a
change be made on the application to reflect the full rifle vest and not just the pieces needed by
the Department.

On March 24, 2020, an amendment to the Resolution was approved by the Council that reflects
the recommendation to list the full rifle vest. The grant in the amount of $87,925.09 was being
requested.

On August 25, 2020, an amendment to the Resolution was approved by the Council that allows
the City to participate in this grant through the Criminal Justice Division Grant Program reflecting
the new grant amount of $86,130.44 for the items requested.

The Police Department was notified by the State of a discrepancy in the level of the plate vests
listed in the previous Resolution and requested an amended Resolution to reflect the correct plate
vest level of III for the items requested. Action is now needed by the Council to approve a
Resolution for the plate vest level to be amended from IIIA to III.



RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval.

ACTION BY COUNCIL

1. Motion to Approve/Disapprove the amended Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Harker Heights, Texas, authorizing a change in the plate vest level listed in the City’s
previous application for a grant in the amount of $86,130.44, through the Criminal Justice
Division Grant Program; for the purchase of 38 Pro Tech DT 206C Level III plate vests
with accessories; and 4 RAM1 SWAT heavy vests; and authorize the City Manager to sign
on behalf of the City.

2. Any other actions desired by the Council.

ATTACHMENTS:

L.

Resolution



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS,
AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE
DIVISION GRANT PROGRAM FOR THE PURCHASE OF 38 PRO TECH DT
206C LEVEL III PLATE VESTS WITH ACCESSORIES, AND 4 RAM1 SWAT
HEAVY VEST.

WHEREAS, the Harker Heights Police Department has prepared an application for a
Criminal Justice Division Grant (“Grant”) # 3998601 to equip the Harker Heights Police
Department Patrol Officers with enhanced protection by purchasing 38 Pro Tech DT 206C
Level III plate vest and accessories. This will give them more ballistic coverage over the
vital organs than the rifle resistant body armor we are currently using for patrol. The
Department is also requesting four (4) Point Blank RAM1 ballistic vest which has BCIII
Ballistics and one 10X12 Level III hard plate. The ballistic vest will be issued to the entry
and inner perimeter teams; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines: ballistic body armor is essential in
modern-day police work, having saved the lives of more than 3000 law enforcement
officers in the past 30 years according to the National Institute of Justice. The Pro Tech
206C is lighter than the vest currently issued to Patrol Officers. The Pro Tech 206C will
protect the patrol officers throat, neck, upper arms and groin area with the accessories. The
four (4) SWAT heavy vest will update protection when they respond to high risk search
warrants, high risk arrest warrants, armed barricaded subject, hostage rescue; and

WHEREAS, the Grant would provide a total of $86,130.44, with no requirement for a
cash or in-kind match; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is in the public interest that the City participate in
the Grant according to the terms and conditions thereof, and by means hereof the Council
expresses its support for such participation; and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this resolution was passed was open to the public, and
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in
strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas:

1. The facts and recitations set forth above are hereby found and declared to be
true and correct.

2. The submission of the application for the Grant is hereby approved.



2

3. The City Manager, David Mitchell, is hereby designated as the City’s authorized
official. He is authorized and empowered to act in the name and on behalf of
the City to apply for, accept, reject, alter, or terminate the City’s participation
in the Grant, and to execute and deliver such agreements (and any changes
therein and additions thereto as he shall determine to be necessary or advisable,
such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery
thereof), and any related consents, notices, certificates, acknowledgments, and
other instruments, and to act as the representative of the City in any lawful way
to perform or cause to be performed such other and further acts as may be
reasonably necessary and appropriate to accomplish the purposes of these
resolutions.

4. All actions taken or performed prior to the date hereof by the City Manager in
respect to the matters referred to and approved in this Resolution be and hereby
are ratified and confirmed in all respects.

5. The City Council agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of Grant funds, such
funds will be returned to the Texas Office of the Governor in full.

6. Any person, corporation, partnership, limited partnership, association, joint
venture or other business entity may presume upon the validity of the acts of
any person authorized herein to act, without further recourse to the governing
documents, minutes or other proceedings of the City, and without joinder of any
other officer or employee of the City.

PASSED AND APPROVED on October 27, 2020, by the Harker Heights City Council.

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor, City of Harker Heights

ATTEST:

Julie Helsham, City Secretary, City of Harker Heights



4

Hark " CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

| Hel tS AGENDA ITEM # IX-1

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: OCTOBER 27,2020

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS CORONAVIRUS
RELIEF FUND (CRF) SMALL BUSINESS GRANT AWARDS FOR PHASE 1 IN THE AMOUNT
OF $89.468.50 AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.

BACKGROUND:

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) established the
Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF). This fund was established to make payments for specified uses
to State and local governments. 20% of the overall allocation was received in late September for
the City of Harker Heights. Of that 20%, the City Council on September 22" set aside $89,468.50
for the Small Business Grant — Phase 1.

The City of Harker Heights collaborated with the Central Texas Council of Governments
(CTCOG) to administer this program. CTCOG has also administered the Bell County’s Business
grant program and the City of Belton’s program.

The application period for the grant program closed at 5:00 p.m. on Friday, October 16". The
grant process received 31 grants and 30 meet specifications identified within the eligibility
requirements of the application.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approving the Small Business Grant awards for Phase 1.

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL:
1. Motion to Approve/Disapprove the City of Harker Heights Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF)
Small Business Grant Awards for Phase 1 in the amount of $89,468.50.
2. Any other action desired.

ATTACHMENTS:

CTCOG Recommendations

Funding All Applicants Equally

Funding on First Come, First Served

Harker Heights Small Business Grant Criteria

Harker Heights Small Business Grant Application Form

il ool

Page1of1



CTCOG

CTCOG Recommendations for the Harker Heights Small Business Grant
Cycle 1

The City of Harker Heights received 31 grant applications, one of which was ineligible because they did
not submit all documentation by the deadline. The following are recommendations based on the 30
eligible businesses:

Recommendation 1:

Split funds equally across all applicants. This would result in $2,982.28 grants to all 30 eligible applicants.
This would result in $.09 remaining of the total program allocation for Cycle 1.

Recommendation 2:

Fund the businesses first come, first served. This would fund the first 29 applicants at the full $3,000
amount and the 30" business at the remaining $2,468.50.
This recommendation utilizes all available funding for the program.

**While CTCOG would typically provide a third recommendation based on scores, there was an
insignificant change in funding amounts compared to the above recommendations utilizing this method,
so no 3™ recommendation is being provided.

Please note that the VFW will be using their funds for their for profit part of their business.



Funds All Applicants Equally: $89,468.50, funds 30 businesses

Business Name

Funding Amount

Pop CornUtopia $2,982.28
Uniem Inc (AKA The Bloom Coffee Roasters) $2,982.28
Cutie Nails $2,982.28
Best Western-Harker Heights $2,982.28
Lupo Pizza $2,982.28
Image Skin Studio $2,982.28
Palacios Massage Therapy LLC $2,982.28
Knights Barber $2,982.28
Tap Tap Art School $2,982.28
Alinas Delicias $2,982.28
Super 8 Harker Heights-DBA (J & J Prime, LLC) $2,982.28
Moon Nails Spa $2,982.28
Lone Star Saloon $2,982.28
Quantegy, LLC $2,982.28
Cell Phone Repair $2,982.28
Dental Images $2,982.28
Rising Stars 3lite $2,982.28
Allegiance Solar $2,982.28
Anthony Joseph Jewelers $2,982.28
Livin Wright $2,982.28
Black Heart Tattoo Collective $2,982.28
The Diamond Dynasty 7, LLC $2,982.28
Beauty by Enero, LLC $2,982.28
Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 3892 $2,982.28
Lucille's Links & BBQ, $2,982.28
Salon MagnaShear $2,982.28
Eco Blu Spa & Salon $2,982.28
Ari's Italian Restaurant $2,982.28
Master Cleaners $2,982.28
My Stylist Hair Salon & More $2,982.28




First Come, First Served: $89,468.50, funds 31 businesses

Business Name

Funding Amount

Pop CornUtopia $3,000
Uniem Inc (AKA The Bloom Coffee Roasters) $3,000
Cutie Nails $3,000
Best Western-Harker Heights $3,000
Lupo Pizza $3,000
Image Skin Studio $3,000
Palacios Massage Therapy LLC $3,000
Knights Barber $3,000
Tap Tap Art School $3,000
Alinas Delicias $3,000
Super 8 Harker Heights-DBA () & J Prime, LLC) $3,000
Moon Nails Spa $3,000
Lone Star Saloon $3,000
Quantegy, LLC $3,000
Cell Phone Repair $3,000
Dental Images $3,000
Rising Stars 3lite $3,000
Allegiance Solar $3,000
Anthony Joseph Jewelers $3,000
Livin Wright $3,000
Black Heart Tattoo Collective $3,000
The Diamond Dynasty 7, LLC $3,000
Beauty by Enero, LLC $3,000
Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 3892 $3,000
Lucille's Links & BBQ $3,000
Salon MagnaShear $3,000
Eco Blu Spa & Salon $3,000
Ari's Italian Restaurant $3,000
Master Cleaners $3,000
My Stylist Hair Salon & More $2,468.50




[ ]
The Bright Star Of
Central Texus el

Coronavirus Relief Funds
City of Harker Heights
Small Business Grant Criteria

The City of Harker Heights is offering Coronavirus Small Business Relief
Grants. The application period opens at 8:00 am on Monday - October 5, 2020
and will close at 5:00 pm on Friday - October 16, 2020.

The maximum amount per businessis $3,000 with a total funding amount of $89,468.50.
Eligibility Criteria for Phase |

Must be a locally owned, independent business.
Must have 50 or fewer FTE (Full time equivalent) for payroll prior to March 1,2020.

Must have a current or anticipated revenue decline beginning after March 1, 2020,
resulting from COVID-19 impacts.

Must have a physical and publicly accessible location within Harker Heights in a
commercial building or business district.

Must have been in continuous operation prior to a disaster declaration ordering the
closure of your business.

Cannot be a home-based business.
Must currently be in operation or plan to reopen when eligible.
Must have been considered a "non-essential business" during disasterdeclarations

o Examples include: Massage Establishments, Hair Salons, Tattoo/Piercing Parlors, Nail
Salons, Bars, Restaurants, Breweries, Wineries, Small Retail Businesses, Gyms and
Fitness Facilities, Indoor Amusement Facilities including Bowling Alleys, Pool Halls,
and Movie Theaters; and Gig workers that own or lease as office space not located
within a residence.

Ineligible Businesses

Franchisors and Non-Profits,

Real Estate Developers/Investors,
Governmental/taxing agencies/departments,
Hobby Businesses as defined by federal law,
Multi-level marketing concerns,



» Gambling Concerns, including casinos, racing operations or other activities whose
purpose involves gambling,

» Lobbying organizations and political organizations subject to Internal Revenue Code 527,
» Sexually Oriented Businesses (live performances, product sales, items, ormaterials),

« Businesses primarily engaged in lending, investments, or to an otherwise eligible
business engaged in financing or factoring,

s Pawn Shops,
+ Anindividual who employs household employees such as nannies orhousekeepers,

» A business where a 20% or more equity owner is incarcerated, on probation, on parole;
presently subject to an indictment, criminal information, arraignment, or other means by
which formal criminal charges are brought in any jurisdiction; or has been convicted of a
felony within the last five years,

+ Concerns engaged in illegal activities under federal, state, or locallaws,
* Abusiness that is otherwise prohibited by federal or Texas law,

« Abusiness that is ineligible or precluded to received federal or State of Texas funding due to
federal laws (including but not limited to the CARES Act) or Texaslaws,

Eligible Use of Grant Funds

» Payroll costs for employees
» Contract Labor
e Supplier payments

» Rent, lease, or mortgage payment (for real property used for business purposes, like
storefront or warehouse, excluding personal residence)

» Rent, lease, or purchase payment for business property (e.g. delivery vehicle; food truck;
kitchen equipment; technology, payment, and communications systems and equipment)

» New or expanded technology applications and Wi-Fi services
» Utility payments for business properties, excluding personalresidence

» Reasonable costs for business operations (insurance, raw materials, marketing
expenses)

¢ PPE and sanitation supplies and equipment

The application may be obtained by going to either the City of Harker Heights website
(www.harkerheights.gov) or the Central Texas Council of Governments (www.ctcog.org). The
application may be submitted electronically to anna.barge@ctcog.org or mailed to: CTCOG, 2180
N Main Street, PO Box 729, Belton, TX 76513 Attn: Planning and Regional Services, Bell County
CRF. Questions can be directed to Anna Barge at anna.barge@ctcog.org or Uryan Nelson at
uryan.nelson@ectcog.org

On behalf of The City of Harker Heights, the program will be administered by the Central Texas
Council of Governments.



City of Harker Heights Coronavirus Small Business Grant Application

Name of Business:

Name of Owner(s):

Name of Applicant (if not an owner, please note your job title)

Email address:

Phone number:

Business Address:

(Street Address)

(City), Texas (Zip code)

Is your business physically located within the city limits of Harker Heights? Yes No

Type of Business: (examples: retail, restaurant, spa)

How many full-time equivalent (FTEs) employees does your business employ currently?

Please explain any revenue decline experienced/anticipated between March 1, 2020 and
December 30, 2020, due to COVID-19. Please provide documentation to support your response.

The documentation should be attached separately.

Phase | application



Narrative Questions:

How has COVID-19 impacted your business?

How would you use this funding to mitigate the effects of COVID-19 on your business? Please
provide documentation supporting how the grant will be applied to your business operations

(i.e. invoices, budget, etc.).

Have you applied for funds elsewhere? If you received funds elsewhere, explain the amount

and how those funds are being used.

Did your business have to close and/or operate on a limited capacity due to COVID-19? What

was the duration of the closure? If you are currently closed, do you plan to re-open?

Please provide the current IRS Form W9 with the application.

The application may be obtained by going to either the City of Harker Heights website

(www.harkerheights.gov) or the Central Texas Council of Governments (www.ctcog.org).

The application may be submitted electronically to HarkerHeightsCRF@ctcog.org or mailed to: CTCOG,

2180 N Main Street, PO Box 729, Belton, TX 76513 Attn: Planning and Regional Services, Harker Heights

CRF. Questions can be directed to: HarkerHeightsCRF@ctcog.org
On behalf of The City of Harker Heights, the program will be administered by the Central Texas Council

of Governments.

2 Phase | application



Certification Page for Coronavirus Small Business Grant

Name of Business:

I, (First and Last Name) certify that all information provided
is accurate and fully reflects the business | represent. | understand that this application does not entitle
my business to grant funding. If funded, | also certify that | will use the grant in accordance with the
objective established by the grant program, and to spend the grant as indicated in the grant application.

Name Date
The City of Harker Heights and the Central Texas Council of Governments will endeavor to retain all

submitted information on a confidential basis to the extent allowed by law.

Phase | application



Harkeg:
I'?gl N CTC®G

Grant Application Scoring Criteria (Phase 1)

Category Points Received/Maximum Total Points
Provide all required documentation /10
Show need for funding /15

If awarded, applicant has a plan
of how to spend grant funds _J15

Provide an explanation
of other funding sources _ /10

Total Points: __ /50

Phase | application







